RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2023 | As at March 31, 2022
ASSETS
I. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,676.4 T17.1
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 1.5 276.8
(c) Other intangible assets 5 146.6 1939
(d) Intangible assets under development 5 220 294
(e) Right-of-use assets 6 329.0 2914
(f) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 7 54.1 14.8
(g) Deferred tax assets (net) 8 242.4 2216
(h) Tax assets (net) 9 119.0 179.8
(1) Other non-current assels 10 50.6 46.7
2,641.6 1,971.5
IL. Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 49771 1,991 4
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 12 5,692.7 34749
(11) Cash and cash equivalents 13 0.5 307.3
(11) Bank balance other than (1) above 13 409.0 526.0
(iv) Other financial assets 14 101.7 102.6
{c¢) Other current assets 135 5,648.3 29278
16,829.3 9,330.0
Total assets 19,470.9 11.301.5
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16 1,250.0 1,250.0
(b) Other equity 17 1.516.0 700.1
Total equity 2,766.0 1.950.1
1L Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 18 199.1 487.9
(11) Lease habihties a2 3483 309.5
(b} Provisions 19 242 8 160.9
790.2 958.3
Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 18 28218 1,339.1
{u) Lease Labilities 32 56.7 323
(111) Trade payables
(a) Dues to micro and small enterpnises 20 2,890.6 7524
(b) Dues to other than micro and small enterprisas 20 42328 5,3882
(iv) Other financial habilities 21 347.7 399 =
(b) Other current habilities 22 5,293 8 24573
(c) Provisions 23 31.2 23.1
(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 10 40.1 1.2
15914.7 8,393.1
Total liabilities 16,704.9 9,351.4
Total equity and liabilities 19.470.9 11,301.5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Piitticukiis Not For the year ended March | For the year ended March 31,
arted otes 31,2023 2022

Income

Revenue from operations 24 22,3583 18,1529

Other income 25 95.9 85.0

Total income (i) 22,4542 18,237.9

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 26 13,786.3 12,454.4

(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress. 27 (1,097.9) (360.9)

Employee benefits expense 28 2,526.2 23844

Finance costs 29 379.4 1374

Depreciation and amortization expense 30 282.3 2014

Other expenses 31 5444 8 3,128.7

Total expenses (ii) 21,321.0 17,945.4

Profit before tax ( iii ) (i-ii) 1,133.2 292.5

Tax expense

Current tax 41 311.1 144.6

Deferred tax (14.0) (71.0)

Total tax expense ( iv ) 297.1 73.6

Profit for the year ( iii-iv) 836.1 218.9

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (27.0) 42

Income tax effect 6.8 (1.1)

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) (20.2) 3.1

Total comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) 815.9 222.0

Earning per equity share

[Nominal Value per share INR 10 (March 31, 2022 - INR 10)]

Basic (in INR) 34 6.7 1.8

Diluted (in INR) 34 0.7 1.8

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on of Directors of Rieco Industries Limited
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Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982F/E300003

WL
per Hiuzefa Ginwala

Partner
Membership No.: 111757

Place’ Pune
Date: May 19. 2023

VIKAS R. BHATIA
Managing Director
DIN :01056616

MEDHA GOKHALE
Chief Financial Otficer
ICAI Membership No.: 133965

Place: Pune
Date: May 19, 2023

TN

S. PADMANABHAN
Independent Director
DIN :00001207

oA

P
MANDAR M. VELANKAR
Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No.. 14469




69tt1 ON diysiaqualy (S0
Arejavag Auedwio))

YVYMNVTIA TWUVANVIA
.~

L0T10000: NI

1012211 wapuadapu]
NVHEAVNVINAVA 'S

£207 61 ABW -21eQ
aung 298|

SOAEET ON diysiaquiniy Tyl
IR0 [BIUEUL JO1Y )
TIVHMOD VHAIW

9199¢010° N1d
1030211(] Suieuepy

€TOT ‘61 e 21
aung 2ae[y

LSL11T TON diysiaquiapy

1auLIR ]
BlRA L) BJIZNY] Jad

e w//
7o)

VILVHE H-§VMIA

73// €0000€A/ATOFTE PN UONBNSIZY Wil [V
W SIUBJUNOIDY PAIILIBY])

d1TT0D RO aAS 104

o

PAIIUI] SILIISN PU] 0331y JO SI0JII(] JO PIROG 3} JO JIUYIG U0 PUE 10, PAYIBNE JIEP UAD JO Lodal mo 1ad sy

‘sluAwAms [edueuly asay jo wed (eiaun ue uuoy sajou Furdurdwoeose ay |

09181 £68 61T 107’1 001 €707 1€ YMEIY Ik S¥ 2duRjRg
6518 = = 6'S18 = Jeak ay) 10y dwodur dasudyIdwod jejo |,
(zoD) * " (T07) 3 (saxe) Jo 19u) awodsut satsudyadwod sayi)
1'9¢8 = = 1'9£8 = TE2A 2U) 10] 1j01]
1'00L £'68 £CIT £'S8¢€ 001 TI0Z 1€ YIIEBLY 18 SE due|ey
07T - - 07T “ 1834 2] 10 dwodul IAISUIYAIdWwod [B)o |
['E - - 1'¢ - (S2XE] JO 12U AWodul dAIsudydIdwod 1ayi)
681C - - 6 81T - TBDA DY) J0) 1J01 ]
1'8LY £68 §CIT ££91 001 1207 ‘1ady | 1 su Dueeg
Auedwod uipjoy EXWET=)
WOIJ HONNGLIIU0D | IAIISIY [BI2UIY) | Furwied paureydy uondmwapay
(LAUAR &by jende) SIRMONIRY
snjding pue saA1asay
Aunba s2ino g
0057’1 000°00°sT'1 £T0T '1€ YME JE sE Duejey
3 = £Z-zgoz duunp endes axeys Aynba ur saduey )
0'05T'1 000°'00°ST'1 7707 YMEN [€ IU SE dueeg
- = 72-170z duunp [endes areys Aynba ur saduey )
0087’1 000°00°SZ'1 120z ‘ady | e se oduejeyg
junowy SAIBYS JO JaquinN SIRALIE]

pred Ajny pue paquidsqns ‘pansst §oea o[ YNI Jo saaeys Apnby
jended saeys Annby -y

(Pa1e1S 2SIMIDYIO SSI[UN “SYNET JN] UI 218 SJUNOWR ||y)
AA AHL HOA ALINOH NI SEONVHD A0 INIWILYLS
QALINDT SARLLSNANI OOA1

£70Z '1€ HOUVIN QIANT o




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

eatsenlon Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022
Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 1,133.2 2925
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expense 2823 201.4

Finance costs 3794 1374

Allowance for/(Reversal of) expected credit losses (88.7) 105.7

Interest income (53.0) (35.6)

Loss on sale of property. plant and equipment 7.0 -

Provision for inventory obsolescence 37.1 159

Liabulities no longer required written back (3.5) -

Unrealised foreign exchnage loss / (gain) 94 -

Write off and impairment provision of intangible asset under development - 267
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,703.2 742.0
Working capital adjustments:

Increase in trade payables 2,9858 1,574.7

Increase in provisions 66.8 519

Increase in other financial liabilities 803 2748

Increase in other current Liabilities 2.836.5 4493

(Increase) in trade receivables (2,138.0) (1,453.6)

(Increase) in inventories (3,022.8) (702.5)

Decrease / (Increase) in other financial assets (38.4) (31.7)

Decrease in other bank balances 117.0 (149.5)

Increase in other assets (2,720.5) (1,005.0)
Cash generated from operations (130.1) (249.5)

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (211.5) (139.7)
Net cash flow (used in) operating activities (A) (341.6) i389.2)
Cash flows from investing activities

Payment for purchase of Property,plant and equipments and intangible assets (inciuding capital work in progress, (790 8) (821.6)

capital crediters & capital advances)

Interest received 53.0 356
Net cash fiow (used in) investing activities (B) (737.8) (186.0)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from current borrowings (net) 1,572.4 1,2943

Repayment of long-term borrowings 3784) 262.0

Payment of principal portion lease liabilities (85.3) (66.3)

Interest paid (336.1) 197.9)
Net cash flow from financing activities (C) 772.6 1,392.1
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) (306.8) 216.9

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 307.3 90.4
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 0.5 307.3

Notes:

(1) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 on Statement of Cash Flows,

(i1) For the purpose of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Cash on hand 05 03
With banks :

On current account - 307.0

Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) 0.5 J07.3




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i) Reconciliation of borrowing

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 Proceeds from Repayment of As at March 31, 2023
Non-current borrowing 487.9 - (288.7) 199.1
Current borrowing 10503 1,572.4 = 26228
Current maturities of non-current borrowing 288.8 B (89.7) 199, |

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of Rieco Industries Limited
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Background

Rieco Industries Limited (“the Company™) was incorporated on 30 October 1975 and is domiciled in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at 1162/2 Shivaji Nagar, Behind Observatory, Pune, Maharashtra, India — 411005. The CIN
of the Company is U24118MHI1975PLC0O18631.

The Company manufactures and sells machinery and equipment for grinding solutions, clean air solutions and conveying
solutions.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 were authorised for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors on 19 May 2023.

Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies:

2.1 Basis of preparation:
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time. read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value (refer to accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (INR 00,000). except when
otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern.

2.2 Significant accounting policies:

i. Current versus non-current classification:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset

is treated as current when it is:

e expecled to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e held primarily for the purpose of trading

e cxpected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

s cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
e it is held primarily for the purpose of trading
e itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or
e there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the reporting
period
The terms of the liability that could. at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
cquivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

ii.

iii.

Foreign currency translation:

(a) Functional and Presentation Currency:
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees Lakhs (INR Lakhs), which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances:
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company in its functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting
at each balance sheet date of the Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognised as income or expenses
in the period in which they arise except for differences pertaining to long term foreign currency monetary items as
mentioned subsequently.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in OCI or statement of profit and loss are also recognised in OCI or statement of profit and loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement:
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received on sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability. or

® Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair valuc of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy. described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

¢ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets. such as properties and unquoted financial assets.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria include market




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The management decides,
after discussions with the Company's external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use for cach case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

e disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 2.2 (xxii))
e quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 40)
¢ financial instruments (including those carried at amortized cost) (note 40)

iv.  Property, plant and equipment:

(a) Recognition and measurement:
An item of property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’) is recognised as an asset if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. These recognition
principles are applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of PPE, to the pre-operative and trial run costs
incurred (net of sales), if any, and also to the costs incurred subsequently to add to. or to replace any part of, or
service it.

ltems of property. plant and equipment are stated at cost and include interest on borrowings directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction. or production of the qualifying asset. A qualifying asset is necessarily an asset which
takes a substantial period of time to be made ready for its intended use or sale. Borrowing costs and other directly
attributable costs are added to the cost of these assets until such time as the assets are ready for their intended use or
sale, which coincides with the commission date of those assets. Assets are presented less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the
item 1o its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and direct
labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended use, and
estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Subsequent expenditure:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company.

(¢) Depreciation:
Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment {except freehold land) is provided on the straight-line
method on pro-rata basis. over the useful lives of assets as prescribed in Schedule — I1 of the Companies Act,
2013, except in respect of some assets where, useful life of assets have been determined based on technical
evaluation done by the management's expert:

Asset Class Useful Life Useful Life as per
Adopted Schedule — 11
Plant and Machinery 10 £
Plant & Machinery — wooden 5 15
patierns




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
certain items of building, plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life
prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives
are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

v. Leases

At inception of the contract, the Company determines whether the contract is a lease or contains a lease arrangement.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

(a) Company as a lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at
the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying asset
or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on
the same basis as those of property. plant and equipment.

Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics. the Company, on a lease by lease basis. may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio.
The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price
of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability.,
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability. the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to short-term leases of all assets that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

vi.

vii.

viil.

(b) Company as a lessor:
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition. intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Research costs are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred.

New Product development costs involving technical knowhow incurred on new products are recognised as intangible
assets, when feasibility has been established. the company has committed technical, financial and other resources to
complete the development and it is probable that the asset will generate future economic benefits. The costs capitalised
include material cost, direct labour and amortized.

Amortisation:
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets i.c.. computer software’s and technical knowhow are amortized on a strai ght-line basis over the period
of expected future benefits. Intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired.

Asset Class Years
Technical know-how 3
Others 3-9

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted if
appropriate.

Gains or losses arising from retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as income/ expense in the statement of profit
and loss.

Intangible asset under development:

Internally generated intangible assets arising from development activity are recognised at cost when the project is clearly
defined and the costs are separately identified and reliably measured, on demonstration of technical feasibility of the
project, the intention and ability of the Company to complete, use or sell it is demonstrated, adequate resources are
available to complete the project and only if it is probable that the asset would generate future economic benefits. Such
costs are capitalised as *Technical know-how’. Otherwise, it is recognised as expenses in the statement of profit and
loss in the period they are incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories:
Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(a) Raw materials:
Raw materials are valued at cost of purchase net of duties (credit availed w.r.t taxes and duties) and includes all
expenses incurred in bringing the materials to location of use.

(b) Work-in-process and Finished Goods:
Waork-in-pracess and finished goads include conversion costs in addition to the landed cost of raw materials.
In case finished goods inventory and work-in-progress. Cost includes an appropriate share of overheads (both fixed
and variable). Fixed overhead are included in cost of manufactured inventory based on normal operating capacity




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(¢) Stores and spares and packing material:
Stores, spares and tools cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost included cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Provision is made for obsolete and non-moving items.

ix.  Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

x. Financial Instruments
(a) Financial Assets:

(1) Initial recognition:
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

(2) Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:

e Financial assets at amortised cost

e  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative
gains and losses (debt instruments)

e Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

e Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost:

A “financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

e Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally
applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) (debt instruments):

A ~financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

e The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

e The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. For debt instruments, at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income. foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the
same manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised
in OCL Upon derecognition. the cumulative fair value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to
profit or loss.

The Company’s does not have any instrument at fair value through OCI however it generally includes includes
investments in quoted debt instruments included under other non-current financial assets.
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Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments):

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under Ind
AS 32 Financial Instruments - Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment.

The Company does not have any investments under this category.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on listed equity investments are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

The Company does not have any investments under this category.

De-recognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

primarily derecognised when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
assel, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (“ECL”) mode! for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss. The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather. it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. right from its initial
recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets the Company recognises 12 month expected credit
losses for all originated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date, the credit risk has not increased
significantly since its original recognition. However. if credit risk has increased significantly. lifetime ECL is used.
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and
loss.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss. the Company combines financial instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Financial Liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables. or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement:
For purposes of subsequent measurement. financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
e Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Scparated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at
the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The
Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition. interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer note 40,

Derecognition:

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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(¢) Offsetting of financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance
Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which
will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Revenue Recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Revenue is recognized when it has approval and commitment from both parties, the rights of the
parties are identified, payment terms are identified, the contract has commercial substance and collectability of
consideration is probable. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it
is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and
credit risks. The Company collects goods and services tax on behalf of the government and, therefore. it is not an
economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue

Revenue from projects:

The Company earns revenue primarily from manufacture and sale of pollution control equipment, size reduction
equipment and pneumatic conveying systems. The equipment are customised based on specific customer requirements.
Most of the Company’s revenue is derived from fixed price contracts and therefore the amount of revenue to be earned
from each contract is determined by reference to those fixed prices. In respect of customised products based on specific
customer requirement, each equipment/ system is considered as a separate performance obligation.

The Company may promise to provide distinct goods or services within a contract, in which case the Company separates
the contract into more than one performance obligation. If a contract is separated into more than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the total transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount based on the
estimated relative standalone selling prices of the promised goods or services underlying each performance obligation.
The Company uses the expected cost plus a margin approach to estimate the standalone selling price of each
performance obligation in case of contracts with more than one distinet performance obligations.

The Company assesses for the timing of revenue recognition in case of each distinet performance obligation. The

Company first assesses whether the revenue can be recognized over a period of time if any of the following criteria is

met:

e The customer simultaneously consumes the benefits as the Company performs. or

e The customer controls the work-in-progress. or

e The Company’s performance does not create an asset with alternative use to the Company and the Company has
right to payment for performance completed till date.

The Company recognizes revenue over time as the Company’s performance does not create an asset with alternative
use to the Company and the Company has right to payment got the performance completed till date.
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The Company uses cost-based measure of progress (or input method) for contracts because it best depicts the transfer
of control to the customer which occurs as it incurs costs on contracts. Under the cost-based measure of progress. the
extent of progress towards completion is measured based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to the total estimated
costs at completion of the performance obligation. Revenues, including estimated profits, are recorded proportionally
as costs are incurred.

When it becomes probable that the total contract costs will exceed the total contract revenue, the Company recognizes
the expected losses from onerous contract as an expense immediately.

Revenue from products:

If the criteria for revenue under over-a-period of time as mentioned above are not met. the Company recognizes revenue
at a point-in-time. The point-in-time is determined when the control of the goods or services is transferred which is
determined based on when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer. Apart from
this, the Company also considers its present right to payment, the legal title to the goods, the physical possession and
the customer acceptance in determining the point in time where control has been transferred.

Revenue from services:
Revenue in respect of operation and maintenance contract, awarded on a basis or included in long term contracts and
identified as a separate performance obligation. is recognized on a time proportion basis under the contracts.

Contract balances:

(1) Contract assets:
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration and are transferred to Trade receivables
on completion of milestones and its related invoicing.

(2) Trade receivables:
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.. only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

(3) Contract liabilities:
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
satisfies the performance obligation. Contract liabilities are recorded in balance sheet as unearned revenue and
Customer advances as the case may be.

xiii. Employee Benefits:

(a) Short Term Emplovee Benefits:

The distinction between short term and long-term employee benefits is based on expected timing of settlement
rather than the employee’s entitlement benefits. All employee benelits payable within twelve months of rendering
the service are classified as short-term benefits. Such benefits include salaries, wages. bonus. short term
compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and are recognised in the period in which the
employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g.. under short-
term cash bonus. if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee. and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(b) Post-Employment Benefits:

(1) Defined contribution plans:
The contributions to provident fund are recognised in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which
the employee renders the related service. The Company has no further obligations under these schemes bevond its
periodic contributions.

2

Defined benefit plans:

The Company operates two defined benefit plans for its employees. viz. gratuity. The present value of the
obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. The fair value of
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plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on a
net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses. the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Compensated absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry forward a portion
of the unutilized accumulating compensated absences and utilize it in future periods or receive cash at retirement
or termination of employment. The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in
which the employee renders the services that increases this entitlement.

Accumulated compensated absences. which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months from the
end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is measured at the
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of
the unused entitlement as at the year end.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of Compensated Absences is the amount of future benefits the employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods This benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the basis of an
annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset till the date the asset is ready for intended
use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss during extended
period when active development activity on the qualifying asset is suspended. Other borrowing costs are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation:

[ncome tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised direetly in equity or in other
comprehensive income.

(a) Current Tax:
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted. at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable
mecome.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the
statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilitics are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement
of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Indirect taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses:

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of indirect taxes paid. except:

e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in
which case. the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item, as applicable.

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included. The net amount of tax recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other asscts or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use. the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified. an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples. quoted
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company's CGUSs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining
growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the products. industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates. or
for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.
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For the assets. an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the
asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed either its recoverable amount,
or the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at March 31 at the CGU level, as
appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus
shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Segment reporting:

The operating segments are the segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating
profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (who is the
Company’s chief operating decision maker) in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the accounting policies of the Company.
Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been identified to segments on the
basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Inter segment revenue is accounted on the basis of
transactions which are primarily determined based on market / fair value factors. Revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis have been
included under ‘unallocated revenue/ expenses/ assets/ liabilities.

Dividends:

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised.
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

Rounding of amounts: .
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to nearest lakhs with one decimal as
per the requirement of Schedule I11. unless otherwise stated.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
dated March 31, 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2023.

(a) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs
to develop accounting estimates.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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(b) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS |
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their *significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
‘material” accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.
The amendments to Ind AS 1 are applicable for annual periods beginning on or afier Ist April 2023. Consequential
amendments have been made in Ind AS 107.
The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure consistency with the
amended requirements.

(¢c) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from Single Transaction-Amendments to Ind AS 12:

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.
The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability should also be recognised for all
deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations.
Consequential amendments have been made in Ind AS 101. The amendments to Ind AS 12 are applicable for
annual periods beginning on or after Ist April 2023.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and the accompanying
disclosures and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the
lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability 1o exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate (e.g.. construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Refer note 32 for information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of
extension and termination options that are not included in the lease term.

Estimates and Assumption:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments. however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

(a) Estimating the incremental borrowing rate to measure lease liabilities
The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease. therefore. it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
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(b)

(c)

(

—

(e)

(g)

pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security. the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
'would have to pay', which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

Useful life of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets : ¢
Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in
respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's property. plant and
equipment and intangible assets are determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at
the end of each reporting period. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life. such as changes in technology. Consequently. the future
depreciation charge could be revised and may have an impact on profit for future years. The policy for the same
has been explained in note 2.2 (iv) and 2.2 (vi).

Recognition of deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the
time of the transaction, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits during the
periods in which those temporary differences and tax loss carry forwards become deductible, The Company
considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income in making this
assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however. could be reduced in the near
term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced. The policy for the same has
been explained under note 2.2 (xv).

Revenue recognition:

At each reporting date, the Company is required 1o estimate costs to complete on fixed-price contracts. Estimating
costs to complete on such contracts requires the Company to make estimates of future costs to be incurred, based
on work to be performed beyond the reporting date. This estimate will impact revenues, cost of sales. work-in
progress, billings in excess of costs. estimated earnings and accrued contract expenses.

Defined benefit obligation:

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases, expected returns on plan assets and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The mortality rale is based on publicly available mortality
tables for India. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future
salary increases, discount rate and return on planned assets are based on expected future inflation rates for India.
Further details about defined benefit plans are given in note 2.2 (xiii).

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Further. the Company also evaluates risk with respect to expected loss on account
of loss in time value of money which is calculated using average cost of capital for relevant financial assets. The
policy for the same has been explained in note 2.2 (x).

Provision for inventory obsolescence:
The Company identifies slow and non-moving stock of all inventories on an ongoing basis. These materials are
then classified based on their expected shelf life to determine the possibility of utilisation / liquidation of these
materials. Based on this study. a provision for slow and non-moving inventory is created.
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(h) Litigation:

The Company has various ongoing litigations, the outcome of which may have a material effect on the financial
position, results of operations or cashflows. The Company's legal team regularly analyses current information about
these matters and assesses the requirement for provision for probable losses including estimates of legal expense
to resolve such matters. In making the decision regarding the need for loss provision, the management considers
the degree of probability of an unfavourable outcome and the ability to make sufficiently reliable estimate of the
amount of loss. The filing of a lawsuit or formal assertion of a claim against the Company or the disclosure of any
such suit or assertions, does not automatically indicate that a provision of a loss may be appropriate. Considering
the facts on hand and the current stage of certain ongoing litigations the Company foresees a remote risk of any
material claim arising from claims against the Company. The Management has exercised significant judgement in
assessing the impact, if any, on the disclosures in respect of litigations in relation to the Company.
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3 Property, plant and equipment

A) Reconciliation of carrying amount

" Freehold Leasehold e Plant and . Furniture and Office Total
Particulars Buildings . Vehicles S
land Improvements Equipment fixtures Equipments
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 0.6 - 141.2 3506 1025 243 233 6423
Additions - - 59 3307 42 164 282 3854
Disposals - - - 9.4 - - - 9.4
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 0.6 - 147.1 671.8 106.7 40.7 51.5 1,018.3
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021 - - 246 1241 49 | 2.7 62 206.7
Depreciation for the year - - 6.6 758 108 i ok 1 69 103.4
Disposals - - - 89 - - - 8.9
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 - - 31.2 191.0 59.9 6.0 13.1 301.2
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 0.6 - 115.9 480.8 46.8 34.7 384 717.1
" Freehold Leasehold s Plant and . Furniture and Office Total
Particulars Buildings = Vehicles 3
land Improvements Equipment fixtures Equipments

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2022 0.6 - 147.1 671.8 106.7 40.7 515 1.0183
Additions - 440 4832 467.5 399 64.7 167 L1160
Disposals - 24 1.8 - - - 4.2
Gross carrying as at March 31, 2023 0.6 44.0 627.9 1,137.5 146.6 105.4 68.2 2,130.1
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2022 - - 312 191.0 599 6.0 131 301.1
Depreciation for the vear - 09 12.0 1107 144 6.6 103 1549
Disposals - 0.9 1.5 - - - 23
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023 - 0.9 423 300.2 74.3 12.6 234 453.7
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 0.6 43.1 585.6 8373 72.3 92.8 44.8 1,676.4

B) The Company has pledged certain property and equipments against borrowing, the details of which have been given in the note 18,
C) The utle deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company

D) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the financial vear ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
E) Assets include assets lying with third parties amounting to INR 25.6 lakhs (March 31, 2022 INR 24.4 lakhs)

4 Capital work-in-progress

A) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Particulars Amount
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 5
Additions 2768
Transferred to property, plant and equipment -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 276.8
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2022 2768
Additions 195.6
Transferred to property. plant and equipment 4709
Gross carrving amount as at March 31, 2023 1.5

B) Following is the ageing schedule for Capital work-in-progress

March 31,2023

Particulars More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
years Total
Projects n progress 1.5 - - - 15
Projects temporarily suspended . = = =

March 31, 2022

Particulars More than 3
Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years s Total

Projects in progress 27638 - - - 2768
Projects temporarily suspended = - - - -

C) There are no projects whose completion 1s overdue or have exceeded their cost compared the original plan
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5 I) Other intangible assets

A) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Technical Know- C i
Particulars how (Internally Suil:lpl.l il Total
Generated) wimare
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2021 59.1 152.9 212.0
Additions 281 608 88,9
Disposals - 3 5
Gross carrying as at March 31, 2022 87.2 213.7 300.9
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2021 - 602 602
Amortsation for the year i9.7 271 46.8
Disposals - 0.0
Acc lated amortisation as at March 31, 2022 19.7 87.3 107.0
Net carrying as at March 31, 2022 67.5 126.4 193.9
‘Technical Know- Glunnistae
Particulars how (Internally P Total
Software
Generated)
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2022 872 2137 300.9
Additions 45 154 19.9
Disposals - 53.8 538
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 91.7 175.3 267.0
Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2022 19.7 873 107.0
Amortisation for the year 291 330 621
Disposals - 48.7 487
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2023 48.8 71.6 1204
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 42.9 103.7 146.6
B) The Company has not revalued 11s mtangible assets during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.
1) Intangible assets under development
A) Reconciliation of carrying amount
Technical Know-
Particulars how (Internally
Generated)
Gross carrying amount as at Aprii 1, 2021 268
Additions 293
Other Adjustement® 207
Transferred to other intangible assets -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 29.4
*Includes asset written off / provided for during the year
Technical Know-
Particulars how (Internally
Generated)
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2022 294
Additions -
Other Adjustement® 29)
Transferred to other mtangible assets (4.5)
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 22.0
*Includes adjustement in relation to sales of prototype
B)Fallowing is the ageing schedule for Intangible assets under development
Particulars March 31,2023
M
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years oxe than Total
3 years
Projects in progress - 220 - - 22.0
Projects temporarily suspended - - - o =
- 22.0 - - 22.0
Particulars March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than Total
3 years
Projects in progress 294 - - - 294
Projects temporarnily suspended - - - - -
29.4 = 5 = 294

There are no projects whase completion is overdue or have exceeded their cost compared the origmal plan
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& Right-of-use assets

A) Reconciliation of carrying amount

NDED MARCH 31, 2023

Particulars

Luildings

Gross carrving amount as at April 1, 2021
Additions,
Deletions

Gross carvying amount as at March 31, 2022

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2021
Depreciation for the vear
Deletions

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31,2022

Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022

Particulars

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2022
Addiuons
Deletions

amount as at March 31. 2023

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2022
Depreciation for the yvear
Deletions

JURRS b

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2023

1454

Net cavrying amount as at March 31, 2023

3290

7 _Other non-current financial assets

As at March

Asat Maoeh

Particulars

31,2023 il. 2023
Security deposits 54.1 145
Total 54.1 14.8
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8 Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars Sl -
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred tax liability relates to be following:
- Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 59.4 361
59.4 36.1
Deferred tax assets relates to be following:

- Expenditure allowed actual payment 142.1 90.0
- Allowance for expected credit loss 763 89.7
- Other (includes inventory obsolescence and other provisions) 834 78.0
301.8 257.7
Deferred tax assets (net) 242.4 221.6
In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assets, agement considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realised. The ultimate

realisation of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible

Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment Based on the level
of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the company will
realise the benefits of those deducuble differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realisable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future

taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Deferred tax expense / (income)

Statement of profit and Loss

For the year ended March |For the year ended March
31,2023 31, 2022
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (23.3)] {55)
Other deductble temporary differences 54 2.6
Allowance for expected credit loss (13.4) 10.0
Expenditure allowed on actual payment 52.1 504
Accumulated tax losses - {66)
Deferred tax expense / (income) 208 710
9 Income tax assets (net)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Non-current tax assets (net)
Income tax assets 283.5 3443
Income tax habihties 164 5 164.5
Non-current income tax assets (net) 119.0 179.77
(b) Current tax liabilities (Net)
Income tax assets 3517 59.5
Income tax habilities 371.8 60.7
Current income tax liabilities (net) 40.1 1.2
10 Other non-current assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Capital advances (unsecured,considered good) 506 46.7
50.6 46.7

No advances are due from directors or other officers of the company, firms in which director 1s a partner or private companies in which director 1s a director or a member either severally

or jomtly with any other person except as disclosed in note 42.

11 Inventories

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Raw matenals (includes items lying wath third party)
Work-n-progress (includes items lying wath third partv)
Fimshed goods (includes items lying with third party)
Stores and spares (includes items lying with third party)

2,6472 8254
21992 7701
4.1 3353
126 6 60.6
4,977.1 1,991.4

For details of inventry pledged as secunty refer note 18

The above amount 15 net of provision for slow-moving / non-moving inventory of INR 167 7 lakhs (March 31, 2022 INR 130 6 lakhs)
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Trade Receivables
. As at As at
Particulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured
Considered good 5,852.2 3,6596
Credit impaired 143.8 171.1
5,996.0 3,830.7
Less:
Impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful including expected credit loss)
Credit impaired 1438 171.1
Considered good 159.5 1847
303.3 355.8
5,692.7 34749 |

No accounts receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are
generally on terms of 0 to 180 days. For terms and conditions related to related party receivables, refer note 42.

For details of inventory pledged as security refer note 18

Following is the ageing schedule for Trade Receivables

As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months - 1-2 years 2.3 years More than Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
Undisputed - Considered good 39111 1,343.8 330.1 1628 44.2 60.2 5852.2
Undisputed - which have significant increase
in credit risk " - : - ) - N
Undisputed - Credit impaired - - = - i = -
Disputed - Considered good = S = - = = -
Disputed - which have significant increase in
credit risk : - : - - - B
Disputed - Credit impaired = = - 00 35.0 108 8 143.8
3.911.1 1,343.8 330.1 162.9 79.3 169.0 5,996.0
Note : Above figures do not include provision for expected credit loss amounting to INR 303.3 lakhs
As at March 31, 2022
8] ling for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 months - 13 years 23 years More than Total
6 months 1 year 3 years
Undisputed - Considered good 2,2103 1,168.1 96.5 - - - 34749
Unmdlsp.ulgd - which have significant increase 503 680 512 152 . ) 1849
n credit risk
Undisputed - Credit impaired = - - 1711 - - 171.1
Disputed - Considered good - = a B 5 2 _
Disputed - which have sigmificant increase in
credit nsk ° - ) = - h °
Disputed - Credit impaired = - - = = - =
2.260.6 1,236.1 147.7 186.3 - - 3.830.7
Note - Above figures do not include provision for expected credit loss amounting to INR 355 8 lakhs
A) Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars sy Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(a) Balances with banks
In current accounts 0.0 3070
(b) Cash on hand 05 03
0.5 307.3
B) Bank balance other than above
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Margin money deposits 409.0 526.0
409.0 526.0
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14

Other current financial assels

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Security deposits 184 4
MEIS scrips in hand 63 1.2
Stamp duty refund receivable 120 12.0
Gratuity receivable 156 -
Export benefits receivable 492 19.0
101.7 102.6
Other current assets
Particulars ALat Asat
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Unsecured , considered good
Advance to suppliers 6867 5928
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances (90.1) (51.4)
596.1 5414
Contract assets (refer note 44) 4,192 5 2,1984
Balances with government authorities 664 5 1211
Prepaid expenses 1399 64 8
Others S 4 29
5,648.3 2,927.8
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16 Equity share capital

As at As at

EXciicalars March 31,2023 | March 31,2022

Authorised :
1,70,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10 each 1,700.0 1,700.0

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up :
1,25,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/~ each fully paid up as at March 31, 2023
(1,25,00,000 Equity Shares of INR 10/- each fully paid up as at March 31, 2022) 1,250.0 1,250.0

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year :

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Equity Shares Number Amount Number Amount
At the beginning of the year 1,25,00,000 1.250.0 1.25.00.000 1.250.0
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Less: Shares bought back during the year - 2 - =
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,25,00,000 1,250.0 1,25,00,000 1,250.0

(b) Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share (Previous Year : INR 10 each). Each holder of equity
share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the

Borad of Directors have not recommended dividend to equity shareholders. (March 31, 2022 : INR Nil per share)

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(¢) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

) T e As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Number Amount Number Amount
Sudarshan Chemical Industries Limited * 1,25,00,000 1,250.0 1,25.00.000 1,250.0
% Holding 100% 100% 100% 100%

* Includes 6 shares held by individuals on behalf of Sudarshan Chemical Industries Limited

(d) For a period of five years immediately preceding 3 1st March, 2023
- aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash - Nil
- aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil
- aggregate number of shares bought back - Nil

(e) As per the records of the company including in required of shareholders/ member and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficial interest the above shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.

(f) The Company does not have any Promoters as defined in Companies Act, 2013 and hence disclosure of shareholding pattern for promoter is not
applicable.

.
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17 Other Equity

Particulars ANiag i
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Capital redemption reserve 10.0 10.0
Retained earnings 1,201.2 385.3
General reserve 2155 2155
Equity contribution from holding company 89.3 89.3

1,516.0 700.1

(a) Movement in other equity
Particulars ¥t At at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Capital redemption reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 10.0 10.0
Balance as at the end of the year 10.0 10.0
Retained earnings
Balance as at the beginning of the year 385.3 163.3
Add: Profit for the year 836.1 218.9
Add: Other comprehensive income (20.2) 3:1
Balance as at the end of the year 1,201.2 385.3
General reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 215.5 215.5
Balance as at the end of the year 215.5 215.5
Equity contribution from holding company
Balance as at the beginning of the year 89.3 89.3
Balance as at the end of the year 89.3 89.3

(b) Nature and purpose of each reserve within equity:

(i) Capital redemption reserve:
This reserve has been created pursuant to buyback of equity share capital and as mandated by the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of
taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) General reserve
General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. It
is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

(iv) Equity contribution from parent company
The fair value of bank guarantee provided by the holding company. Sudarshan Chemicals India Limited to enable Rieco
[ndustries Limited. to avail bank finance at concessional rates has been classified as "Equity contribution from holding
company" in accordance with Ind AS 109.
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18 Borrowings

Asat

Particulars 31, 2023 March 31. 2023

A) Non-current borrowings
Secured
From banks
Rupee loans (refer note () below) 1434

Unsecured
Term loans from banks
Rupee loans (refier note (b) below) 199.1 3444
Total non-current borrowings 199.1 4879

B) Current horrowings
Seeured
From banks
Rupee loans (reler notc (¢} below ) 1.463.0 1L.Us03

Unseeured
From banks
Rupee loans (reler note (d) below) 11391 =

Current maturitics of non-current borrowings 199.1 2888

Total curreat borrowings 28218 13391

Note: -

a) The term Loan carries nterest o nd i3 secured by by pothecation of mventory, receivables and Jand aud buldmg <itwsted ot Al Khed The
b) The term loan carries interest @ repo rate + 2.3% and 18 backed by corporate antee from Sudarshan Chenueal Indusines Linmed

©) The working capital loans from various banks carries imterest ‘@ repo rate +2 3% and @/ repo linked #0070 The working copial loans we <ccured by hwpotliceation of iiventory, receivables and moveable
hixed assets and backed by carporate guarantce ram Sudarshan Chemical Indusivies Limited

v loan was repand during the vear.

d) The working capital foans from vanous banks carries mierest @ 8 3 10 9.3% per annun
¢) The Company files monthiv/ quarterly state

files the revised return with the updated amount

it fo ctvables. pavables and mventory with banks: Further. pursicont 1o subsequant admstment i we post clasures of vearly bool and statutory audit the Company
il the sear end

1) The charges or sabisfaction on the assets of the Company are registered with Registrar of Companies swithin the the statutony persod The Company soss not have any charzes - satisfaction which are vet to be
registered with Registrar of Companics (RUOC) bevond statutory period

) The Company has used the borrowings obtamed from banks and financial institutions for the speeific purpose for which thes were taken dung the vcar ended 3181 Mareh, 2023

I} The Company has not been declared a sallul defaulier by any bank. fancial institulion, govermment, or gosermment authority
1) The company has been sanctioned 4 fund based limit o' INR 3,000 lakhs and non-fund based limit of INR 9,001 akhis m respect ol working captal (s litios by s bankers

19 Provisions : non-current

Prsticuliry Asat Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Pravision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences el 90.9
Provision for gratuity {refer note 37) 1237 T0.0
418 160.9
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Trade payables

Particulars

Asat
March 31,2023 |

Dues to micro and small enterpnses (refer note 351
Dues to other than micro and small enterprises

2,890.6
42326

Asat
7524
3,388.2

7,123.2

4,140.6

Following is the ageing schedule for trade payables
As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for the followin; iods form due date of payment

Particulars Less than

Not Due
1vear

Unbilled* 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises

and small enterprises (Undisputed) 2,090:1 8000 0.6
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterpriscs and small enterprises
(Undisouted)

Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises

and small enterprises (Disputed)

41806 13258 408 15.5

Total Qutstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enlerpnscs and small enterprises
(Disputed)

414 155

Total 4186 34159 3.228.1

71234

As at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for the following periods form due date of payment

Particulars Less than

Unbilled*
1 year

Not Due 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 vears

Tatal

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises (Undisputed) 5607 191.7
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

(1 Indisnutedy

Total outstanding dues of nucro enterprises

and small enterprises (Disputed)

3292 4314 26276

Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises

1
Total 329.2 2819.3

4,140.6

*unbilled represents accrual for expenses

Trade payables arc non-interest bearing and are generally settled on 60-90 day terms.

The above amount of trade payables is net of certain receivables against supply of goods. The company currently has a Jegally enforceable right to set off the receivanles against the respective pavables. The company

intends 10 settle these amounts on net basis.

Other current financial liabilities

i As at As at
rticul £
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Emplovee dues 4698 399.5
Payable for capital goods 679 -
Commission pavable to directors 10.0 -
S47.7 399.5
Other current liabilities
Pirticnlars As at Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Statutory dues # 802 521
Contract labilities § 32136 24053
52938 24574

# includes pavables in respect to TDS, GST. PF. ESIC ete

§ The Contract habilities relate to unearned revenue and customer advances where performance obligations are vet to be fulfilled as per the contracts The fulfilment of the performance obligations will exunguwsh these

liabihiies and revenue will be recogmsed, with no impact on the Company's cash positions on speaific projects

Provistons : Current

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 37, 2022

Provision for employee benefits :
Provision for compensated absences

312

[

I[_u 5
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from projects and products 22,051.9 18.012.4
Revenue from services 262.3 134.5
Total revenue from contracts with customers 22,314.2 18,146.9
Other operating revenue
Export incentives 44.1 6.0
22,358.3 18,152.9
Other income
Puveboiliis For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income
- On income tax refund 4.9 4.3
- Bank deposits 453 23.7
- Others interest income 2.8 75
Commission income RIRY -
Liabilities no longer required written back 35 11.0
Miscellaneous income 75 38.5
95.9 85.0
Cost of material consumed
Particuliors For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Inventory at the beginning of the year (refer note 11) 825.4 482.2
Add: Purchases 15.608.1 12,797.6
16.433.5 13.279.8
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear (refer note 11) 2,647.2 825.4
13,786.3 12,454.4
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Inventories at the beginning of the year (refer note 11)
Finished goods 3353 112.6
Work-in-progress 770.1 631.9
1,105.4 744.5
Inventories at the end of the year (refer note 11)
Finished goods 4.1 335.3
Work-in-progress 2.199.2 770.1
2.203.3 1,105.4
(1,097.9) (360.9)
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Employee benefit expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus (including director remuncration)
Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expense

Staff welfare expenses

Less: capitalised under intangible assets (internally generated) and
intangibles under development (internally generated)

2,305.2 2,2188
111.4 102.9
24.9 233
84.7 67.5
2.526.2 24125
. (28.1)
2,526.2 2,384.4

Finance costs

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Interest expenses on bank facilities
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Other borrowing costs™®

2918 75.0
433 39.5
443 229

379.4 137.4

*includes charges for guarantees, loan processing charges etc.

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Eartieviao March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 154.9 103.4
Amortisation on intangible assets (refer note 5) 62.1 46.8
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (refer note 6) 653 512
282.3 201.4




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 Other expenses

For the year ended

For the vear ended

sactiediace March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Consumption of stores and spares 618.0 2163
Power and fuel 81.5 32.1
Contract labour charges 1,562.4 609.3
Hire Charges 619.0 2593
Rent 26.6 18.6
Repairs and maintenance

- Buildings 16.4 18.7

- Others 95.3 76.1
Insurance 79.6 56.0
Rates and taxes (excluding taxes on income) 43.0 62.3
Advertisement 43.6 12.4
Payment to auditors (refer note 36) 7.1 3.1
Bad debts written off 44.6 66.2
Other balances written off 39.7 0.2
Allowance for/(Reversal of) expected credit loss (88.7) 393
Bank charges 97.2 120.0
Commission to selling agents 118.6 327
Freight and forwarding expenses 554.4 433.60
Directors' sitting fees 9.4 11.0
Foreign exchange (gain)/ loss (net) 19.7 3.8
Legal and professional expenses 301.3 334.0
Printing, stationery and communication expenses 32.2 27.6
Travelling and conveyance expenses 636.6 440.6
Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 45) 13.0 6.9
Directors' commission 10.0 -
Royalty 79.9 -
Loss on sale/ discard of asscts 7.0 -
Safety Services 78.0 65.4
Subscription 101.8 76.9
Miscellaneous expenses 197.6 106.4

5,444.8 3,128.6

Miscellaneous expenses include office expenses, sales expenses and IT expenses etc.




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32 Leases
The effective interest rate for the lease liability is a weighted average incremental borrowing rate on the basis of exsisting
borrowings was considered as incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rate used was with in range of 10% -
11.30% depending on the amount involved and tenure of the lease agreement..

The company also has certain leases of various assets with lease term of 12 months or less, and with low value of lease rent.
The company applies "short term lease" and "lease of low value assets" recognition exemption for these leases.

Particulars Amount

Balance as at April 1. 2021 368.6

Add: Addition during the year -

Add: Interest accrued on lease liability 393

Less: Cash outflows for leases (66.3)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 341.8

Balance as at April 1, 2022 341.8

Add: Addition during the year 105.2

Add: Interest accrued on lease liability 433

Less: Cash outflows for leases (83.3)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 405.0

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Current 6.7 32.3
Non Current 348.3 309.5
Total 405.0 341.8

Amounts recognized in profit and loss account -

For the year ended March | For the year ended March

Raticutars 31,2023 31,2022

Interest expense on lease liabilities 433 39.5
Expenses realting to short term lease 20.6 18.6
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 65.3 51.2

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flow

For the year ended March | For the year ended March
31, 2023 31,2022
T'otal cash outtlow for leases 85.

Particulars

66.3

wn
[#%]

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars As at March 31,2023 |  As at March 31, 2022

(a) Less than | year 08.2 68.7
(b) 1 to 5 years 339.0 278.6
(c) More than 5 years 100.8 1535




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33 Commitments and contingencies:
A) Capital commitment:
The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account, and not provided for is INR 210.9 lakhs as

at March 31, 2023 ( INR 58.2 lakhs, as at March 31, 2022).

B) Claims against the Company where the Company has preferred appeals

. As at As at
Kaxticulary March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Sales tax / Value added tax 284 28.5
Goods and services tax 77.7

106.1 28.5

C) Other litigations
There are several other cases which as been determined as remote or as been provided in the books by the Company and
hence not been disclosed above.

D) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees
The Company has issued performance bank guarantees to the customers amounting to INR 1,861.0 lakhs (March 31, 2022:
INR 1,919.0 lakhs)

34 Earnings per share

Pariiculars For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profits attributable to equity shareholders 836.1 218.9
Basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 1,25,00,000 1,25,00,000
6.7 1.8

Diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for diluted 1,25,00,000 1,25,00,000
earnings per share

6.7 1.8

35 Details of due to micro and small enterprise defined under micro and small enterprises development Act, 2006

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 2,890.6 7524
Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 on the 18.9 31
above amount ’ ’
Pay—menl made to suppliers (other than interest) beyond the appointed day, 4.909.9 174.0
during the year
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (other than section
16) i '
Interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 (section 16) - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 for the
payments already made ) i
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers 518 149
under the MSMED Act, 2006 ) )

The identification fo auppliers under the "Micro and small Enterprises Development Act, 2006" was done on the basis on
the information to the extent provided by the supplier to the Company

36 Payment to auditors

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
As auditor:
- Audit fees 7.0 3.0
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.1 0.1
T.1 3.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs. unless otherwise stated)
Post-employment benefit plans

A. Defined contribution plans
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recogmzed as expense for the year is as under:

. ’ For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars : 1
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Employer's contribution to provident funds and other funds 111.4 105.1

The Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to provident fund and labour welfare fund are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B. Defined Benefit Plans
I. Gratuity

Funded Scheme:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed
five years of a service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age. These
benefits are funded with an insurance company in the form of a qualifving insurance policy.

Risk exposure and asset-liability matching:
Provision of a defined benefit scheme poses certain risks, as The Holding Company and its domestic subsidiary take on unceriain long term obligations to make
future benefit payments

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss, the funded status and amounts
recognized in balance sheet for the plan.

Net employee benefit expense on account of gratuity recognized in employee benefits expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 249 232
Net interest expense 6.4 2.3
Net benefit expense 31:3 25.5
Net interest expense / (income)
§ For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars =
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 1.4 8.8
Interest (income) on plan assets (5.0) (6.5)
Total net interest cost 6.4 2.3

Changes in the present value of the defined henefit obligation are as follows :

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 144 4 152.8
Interest cost 11.4 8.8
Current service cost 249 23.3
Benefits paid from plant assets (29.8) (33.4)
Re-measurement (gain)/ loss in other comprehensive income

Experience (gain)/ loss on plan liabilities 10.2 23

Demographic (gain)/ loss on plan habilities (0.0) (0.9)

Financial (gain)/ loss on plan liabilities 14.4 (8.4)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 175.5 144.4

Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Fair value of plan asscts at the beginning of the vear 74.4 101.6
Expected return on plan assets 5.0 6.5
Employer contributions 1.7 25
Benefit payments from plan assets (26.9) (33.4)
Re-measurement gain / (loss) in other comprehensive income

Experience gain / (loss) on plan assets (2.4) (2.8)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 51.8 74.4




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST
(All amounts are i INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Amount recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income

s AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

FFor the year ended
March 31, 2022

Experience (gain) / loss on plan liabilities 10.2 23
Demographic (gain) / loss on plan liabilities (0.0) (0.9)
Financial (gain) / loss on plan liabilities 14.4 (8.4)
Experience (gain) / loss on plan assets 2.4 2.8
Total Actuarial (gain)/loss included in Other Comprehensive Income 27.0 (4.2)

Amount to be recognised as balance sheet

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Defined Benefit Obligation
Fair value ol plan asscts
Closing net defined benefit liability/(asset)

175.5 144.4
51.8 74.4
123.7 70.0

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Nature of plan assets

For the vear ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Investments with insurer

100%

100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plan are shown helow:

Demographic Assumptions

Expected average future working life is considered as 6.32 years ( 7.58 years in 31 March, 2022).
Mortality: Mortality has been assumed to be Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ultimate (IALM ult).

Disability: No explicit allowance has been made for disabilities.

Financial assumptions

For the year cnded

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Yo Yo
Discount rate 7.4% 6.9%
Employee turnover 15.0% 12.0%
Expected rate of increment in compensation levels 8.0% 5.0%
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 is as shown below:
Defined benefit obligation
As at As at
Assumptions March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Increase by 100 | Decrease by 100 Increase by 100 basis Decrease by 100 basis
basis points basis points points points
Discount Rate (167.1) 184.9 (137.4) 152.3
Expected rate of increment in compensation levels 183.4 (168.3) 151.3 (138.1)

Sensitivity analysis indicates the influence of a reasonable change in certain significant assumptions on the outcome of the Present value of obligation and aids in
understanding the uncertainty of reported amounts. Sensitivity analysis is done by varying one parameter at a time and studying its impact.

The following is the maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (undiscounted):

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
Between 2 and 5 years
Beyond 5 years

353
86.1
73.0

25.9
68.7
58.6

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

Total expected payments

w0 f ©
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38 Financial risk management
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of loans and borrowings and trade payables The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations.
The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company is exposed to market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks The Company's senior management advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk govemance framework for the Company. The Company's senior management provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate
policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised as below

(a) Credit risk

P ial impact of risk Management policy Sensitivity to risk
Credit risk is the risk that a|Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Company's policy,|The Company considers the probability of default upon :nitial
counterparty  will not meet its|procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management |recognition and whether there have been significant increase in the|

obligations  under a  financial|Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any|credit risk on ongoing basis throughout each reporting period, to
instrument or customer contract,|shipments to major customers are generally covered by advances. Anl|assess increase in the credit risk. the Company compares the rate of]
leading to a financial loss. Thelimpairment analysis based on Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model is|default on the date of reporting and initial recognition.

Company is exposed to credit risk|performed at each reporting date Against these receivables, a provision for expected loss allowance is|
from its operating activities, i e. wade recognised

receivables

The movement in the allowance for expected credit loss for trade receivables is as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 3558 3165
Provision (reversed)recognised for expected credit losses (52.5) 393
Balance at the end of the year 303.3 355.8

In addition to the historical pattern of credit loss, the Company has considered the likelihood of increased credit risk considering emerging situations due to the COVID-19 pandemic. This
assessment is based on the likelihood of the recoveries from the customers in the present situation. The Company closely monitars its customers who are going through financial stress and
assesses actions such as change in payment terms, recognition of revenue an collection basis etc, depending on severity of each case. Basis this assessment, the allowance for doubtful
trade receivables is considered adequate

In addition, financial instruments that are subject to concentration of credit risk include cash and cash equivalents. other balances with banks and other financial assets None of the
financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration of credit risk. Credit risk 0. cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with
banks

(b) Ligquidity risk
Potential impact of risk Management policy Sensitivity to risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that| The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash
the Company will not be able *o settle[funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdiatts and bank loans |equivalents, borrowings and the cash flow that is generated from
or meet its obligation on time or at a|The Company has access to a sufficient vanety of sources of funding and|operations. The Company belicves that current cash and cash
reasonable price or there could be|debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. equivalents, tied up borrowing lines and cash flow that is generated
xcessive concentrations of risks ‘The|ln arder to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies|from operations is sufficient to meet requirements. Accordingly,
Company's finance depantment is|and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a|liquidity risk is perceived to below The Company assessed the
responsible for liquidity. funding as ell[diversitied portfolio, Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled [concentration of risk and concluded it 1o below The following table

as settlement management. Excessive|and managed accordingly shows the marurity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities
concentrations of risks arise when a based on contractually agreedundiscounted cash flows as at the
number of counterparties are engaged Balance Sheet date

in  similar business activities, or
activities in the same geographical
region, or have economic features that
would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic,
political  or  other  conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of  the Company's
performance to developments affecting
a particular industiv

Following is the table ises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on the contractual undiscounted payments:
Particulars As at March 31, 2023

Less than | year 1-5 years > § years Total
Borrowings - current 28218 - - 2.321.8
Borrowings - non-current - 199.1 - 199 1
Lease liabilities 361 2581 90 8 405.0
Trade payables 7.062.6 60.8 - 7,1234
Other financial habilities 5477 - - 5477
Piitisitars As at March 31, 2022

Less than 1 year 1-5 years > 5 vears Total
Baorrowings - current ,339.1 - - 1,339.1
Borrowings - non-current - 4879 - 4879
Lease liabilities 323 1790 130 § 3418
Trade payables 4,140 6 - - 41406

Other liabilities 399.5 i = 300 §
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(c) Market risk

Potent

mpact of risk l

Management policy

Seasitivits to risk

Interest rate risk

The Company is mainly exposed 10|
interest rate risk due to its vanable
interest rate borrowings. The mterest
rate nsk anses due 10 uncertainties
about the future inarket interest rate of]
these borrowings.

In order to mangge 1ts interest rute nisk arising from vanable e
borrowings, the Company borrows trom various banks m accordane

the framework set by the Finance department

151 rate

with

A an estimaton of the approximare impact of the interest rate risk,
with respect to financial mistruments, the Company has calculated
the impact of @ 25 bps change 0 mierest rates. A 25 bps reduction
i interest rates would have led 1o approximately an additional INR|
70 lakhs and (2021-22 INR 4 7 lakhs) gain in Statement of Profit
and Loss A 25 bps increase m interest rates would have led to an
equal but apposite effect

i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company has international
operations and is exposed 10 foreign
exchange risk arising from foreign
currency Foreign
exchange risk arises trom commercial
transactions and recogmsed Financial
assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the Company’s
functional currency (INR) The risk
also includes highly probable forcign
currency cash flows The Company,
has exposure arising outof” export,
import, and other transactions

transactions

The Company has exposure anising out of expart

Iransacnons

unport, and other

As an estimation of the approximate impact of the foreign exchange)
with respect 1o tinancial statements, the Company has
caleulated the impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
isitivity to a possible change in
LUSD excha rates. with all other variables held
constant The Company™s exposure 1o foreign currency changes for|
all miher currencies is not material

rate sk

ubles demunstrate the se

Foreign currency exposure and

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

sensitivity

UsD

EURO

USh

EURO

Amount given below are in Rs Lakhs

Amount given below are in Ks Lukhs

Trade Receivables 2975 . 4.1 -
Trade Payables - - {2013 721
Total 297.5 - 46.0 (72.1)

Considering the quantum ol foreign currency receivables and payables as compared to total receivables and pavables. the company has not opted for hedging against currency

fluctuations

39 Capital management

The Company's capital comprises equity share capital and other equity attributable to equity holders

The Company's objectives when managing capital are 10

- safeguard their ability 1o continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns tor shareholders and benetis for other wakeliolders. and

- maintain an optimal capital structure o reduce the cost of capital

The Company monitors capital using net debt-equity ratio. which is net debt (i e Total Debt - Cash and Cash eguivalents) divided by total cquits These ratios are illustrated below:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31,2022

Total debt 30210 1.827.0
Less: cash and cash equivalenis 03 3073
Net debt 3,020.5 1.519.7
Total equity 2,766.0 1,950.1
Debt-equity ratio 1.1 0.8
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value measurements

Categories of financial instruments -

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

FVPL

FVOCI

Amortized cost

FVPL

FYOCI

Amortized cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables - 5,692.7 - 34749
Cash and cash equivalents - 0.5 - 307.3
Other financial assets - 155.9 = 1174
Other bank balance 409.0 526.0
Total financial assets - 6,258.1 - 4,425.6
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - current - 28218 - 1.339.1
Borrowings - non-current 199.1 487.9
Lease liabilities - 405.0 - 3418
Trade payables - 71234 - 4.140.6
Other liabilities - 547.7 - 399.5
Total financial liabilitics - 11,097.0 - 6,708.9

Fair value hierarchy:

As per Ind AS 107 "Financial Instrument: Disclosure”. fair value disclosures are not required when the carrying amounts reasonably approximate the fair value, As

illusirated above, all financial instruments of the company are valued at amortized cost which approximates the fair valuc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023

(All amounts arc in INR Lakhs. uniess otherwise stated)

Income tax expense

This note provides an analysis of Company's income tax expense, shows amounts (hat are recognized directly in equity and
how the tax expense is affected by non- assessuble and non-deductible items. It also explains signilicant estimates made in

relation to Company's tax positions.

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Income tax expense

Current Tax

Current tax on profits for the year 3111 144.6 |

Deferred tax

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (14.0) (71.0)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 297.1 73.6

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by statutory tax rate:

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
Mar 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before taxes 11332 2925

Applicable income tax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2022: 25.168%) 285.2 7346

Others disallowances 11.9 -

297.1 73.6
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 297.1 73.6
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(All amounts in INR Lakhs. unless otherwise stated )

43 Operating Segments :
A. Basis for seamentation

An operating segment is a segment of the Company that engages in business activates from which it ma

for which discrete financial mformation 15 availsble. All operating segments'’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Company's Managing Direetor 1o make decisions about resources 1o be allocated 1o the scgments and assess their

cam revenue and incur expenses, wcludmg revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Comipany's other segments and

performance.

The Company has three reportable segments as deseribed below, which are the Company's stategic business units:
{i} Clean Air solution ("CAS") earlier known as. Air Pollution Controls Equipment ("APC")

{i1) Grinding Solution ("GS") earlicr known as. Size Reduction Equipment ("SRE")

(i) Conveying Solution ("US") carlier known as, Pneumatic handhing systems ("PHS™)

The Company's operating busincsses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products and services provided, with cach segment representing strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different
markets. The analysis of geographical segments is hased on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate. For each of the business units. the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker reviews internal management
reports on a monthly basis,

B. Information about reportable segments

Information regarding the resulis of cach reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (hefore tax). as included in the intemal management reports that are reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating
Decision Maker. Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within shese industries.

Year ended 31" March, 2023 Year ended 31st March, 2022
CAS (APC) S (SRE) CS (PHS) Others Total CAS (APC) GS (SRE) CS (PHS) Others Total
n 2) (3) ) (1+2+3+4) m 2) 3) 4) (1+2+3+4)

Segment Revenue

(a) Revenues domestic B.1322 7.728.6 45738 146.5 20.581.1 6.549.6 6.K143 38663 ®ld 17.311.6

(b) Revenues expon 2875 649.2 8322 8.3 LT712 o418 141.2 58.3 - 841.3
Total segment revenue - external 8.419.7 8,377.8 5,406.0 1548 22,358.3 72,1914 6.9554 3.924.7 814 18,152.9
Scpgment Results

Profit before tax and finance cost from segment T48.7 7079 8R.3 (34.1) 1.510.7 499 682 31270 (05.2) 4299

Less: Finance costs (net) T84 2985 (1.0} |9 37707 544 523 301 Lo 137.4
Profit from ordinary activities after finance cost 670.3 4094 89.3 {36.0) 1.133.0 455 159 2969 (65.8) 2925
but before tax

Tax expense 297.1 73.6
Profit [rom continuing operations after tax 8359 218.9

Segment Assels LREH 74782 28715 48.7 19,228.5 4.389.4 42454 2.395:5 49.0 11,0799

Segment Liabilities 6.558.6 4.508.3 25494 076 13,684.0 2.980.8 2.883.0 1,626 8 337 7.524.4
Net Assets 2,171.5 2.969.9 322.1 (18.9)’ 5.544.5 1,408.6 13623 T68.7 15.8 15585
Capital Lxpendsture during the year 340.8 4543 3408 - 1,1359 2014 2014 100.7 - S03.6
Non Cash expenditure related 1o the segment 84.7 112.9 R4.7 - 2823 8.6 806 40.3 - 2014
C. Reconciliations of information on reportable scgments to Ind AS measures

Year ended Year ended

March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

i. Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 19.228.5 11,0799
Deferred Tax Asset 242.4 2216
Total Assets 19.470.9 11.301.5

Total liabilities for reportable segments 13.684.0 7.524.4
Equity 2.766.0 1.950.1
General Borrowings 30209 1.827.0
Total Equity and Liabilities 19.470.7 11.301.5

D. Geographical information

Year ended Year ended
March 31,2023 | March 31, 2022

i. Segment Revenue by location of customers

In India 20,5811 173116
Outside India 1,777.2 8413
22,358.3 18.152.9

ii. Non-current operating assets by location of assets
There no non-current assels located outside India,

E. During the financial year 2022-23. as well as the previous year 2021-22. there was no single customer exceeding 10% of revenue.




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31,2023

(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

44 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 115
(a) Revenue streams

The Company earns revenue primarily from manufacture and sale of pollution control equipment, size reduction equipment
and pneumatic conveying systems. The equipment are customized based on specific customer requirements. (Refer note 43)

(b) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

In the following table , revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by pimary geographical market, major products

ans service lines and timing of revenue recognition

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the vear ended
March 31, 2022

Major product lines

CAS (APC) 8.419.7 7,191.4
GS (SRE) 8,377.8 6,955.4
CS (PHS) 5,406.0 3,924.7
Other 154.8 81.4

22,358.3 18,152.9

Primary geographical market

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
India 20,581.1 17.311.6
QOutside India 1. 7772 841.3
22,358.3 18,152.8

Timing of revenue recognition

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Products transferred at point in time 1,271.0 1,053.7
Products transferred over a period of time 21,087.3 17,099.2
22,358.3 18,152.9

(¢) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations 22,358.3 18,152.9
Less: Adjustments

Export incentives (44.1) (6.0)
Revenue from contract with customers 22,3143 18,146.9
Add : Adjustments (sales returns, discounts, etc.) - -
Revenue as per contracted price 22,314.3 18,146.9




RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED March 31,2023
(All amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(c) Contract Balances
Contract assets primarily relate to the Company’s rights to consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting
date from projects and customised contracts. Contract assets are transferred to Trade receivables on completion of milestones
and related invoicing.

The Contract liabilities relatc to unearned revenue and customer advances where performance obligations are yet to be
fulfilled as per the contracts. The fulfilment of the performance obligations will extinguish these liabilitics and revenue will be
recognised, with no impact on the Company's cash positions on specific projects.

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

Trade Receivable (refer note 12)*
Contract asset (refer note 15)

Contract liabilities (refer note 22)

5,692.7
4,192.5
5,213.6

34749
2,198.4
2,405.3

*Net of provision for expected credit losses as recognised in accrodance with the provisions of Ind AS 109 amounting to INR

303.3 lakhs (March 31, 2022: INR 355.8 lakhs)

Revenue recognised from amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
’ S orer l.‘ v t 1 d 3 t
Re\,.e:.nlju chognlseq frgm Lmjoun included in contract 2405 1.902
liabilities at the beginning of the year
2,405 1,902

(d) The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations as on 31st
March 2023 is Rs. 11,098 lakhs (31st March 2022 is Rs. 2,668 lakhs) and is expected to be recognized as revenue in the next
year.

45 Amount spent towards corporate social responsibility

Pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed on January 22, 2021
to undertake CSR projects. The Company has spent INR 13.0 lakhs on Pimpri Chichwad Education, Shala Sudhar Yojana
Z.P.P and donation to Sudarshan CSR foundation (March 31, 2022 - INR 6.9 lakhs) based on 2% of the average net profits of
the preceding three years, for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 as against requriment of INR 12.9 lakhs,

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(i) Construction / acquisition of any asset - -
(ii) On the purpose other than (i) above 13.0 5.0
(111) Amount not spent - 1.9
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RIECO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2023
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

47 Additional regulatory infor

48

49

50

(a)  There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) either
severally or jointly with any other person.

(b)  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any Benami property under the
Benami transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made there under

{c)  The Company do not have any transactions or balance outstanding with companics struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies
Act, 1956.

(d)  The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,
2017.

(e)  There are no such transactions which are not recorded in the books of accounts and that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the vear in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(f)  The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year. The company does not have balance of crypto currency or virtual
currency at the end of the financial. year

(g) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
i.Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
ii.Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(h)  The Company has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shall:
i.Directly or indirectly lend or imvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

i.Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which subsumes the Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and rules there under. The Ministry of Labour
and Employment has also released draft rules thereunder on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the
Ministry. The Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact, if any, and account for the same once the rules are notified and become effective,

The remuneration paid / payable to directors for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023, is in excess of the limit prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and is approved
by the shareholder through a special resolution in Extra-ordinary General Mezting held on May 19, 2023.

MCA has amended Rule 3 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (the “Accounts Rules™) relating to the mode of keeping books of account and other books and papers in
clectronic mode through an amendment on August 5, 2022, In compliance with the requirements of the amendment, the books of accounts and other relevant books and records
are accessible in India at all times. Further, backup of books of account maintained in electronic form is kept in servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

51 Additional regulatory information/disclosures as required by General Instructions to Division [ of Schedule L1I to the Compaies Act, 2013 are furnished to the extent applicable
to the Company.

52 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified as considered necessary to conform with current period presentation wherever applicable.

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Rieco Industries Limited

ForSRBC & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants «
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Managing Director Independent Director
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Chief Financial Officer
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Company Secretary
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